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GALAPAGOS IS ACCELERATING:
Our therapeutic pipeline in bone and joint
diseases has shown first Proof of Concept and is
progressing toward the clinic
Our service division BioFocus is becoming a key
European player in drug discovery services
Our partners obtain rapid results in their drug
discovery through collaborating with us
Our people progress their careers at Galapagos

… AND WE ARE JUST GETTING STARTED
TIMELINE
1999

2002

Galapagos established as a
joint venture between Crucell and Tibotec

Raised € 23.4M in funding from top-tier venture
capitalists

OUR ACCELERATION AT A GLANCE

REVENUES

in € m illio n s

R&D INVESTMENT
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2005
• Raised € 22.4M in IPO
• Acquired BioFocus plc through an all
share offer
• Quoted on Euronext Amsterdam and
Brussels, London AiM
• Demonstrated first Proof of Concept in
rheumatoid arthritis program

• Signed more than 20 target and drug discovery
deals with pharmaceutical & biotech firms and
patient organizations
• Grew from 70 to more than 200 employees
• Grew revenues from € 7.8 to € 11.2M
• Increased R&D investment from € 5.4 to € 6.7M
• Cash burn of € 4.7M
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05
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LETTER TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS
Dear Shareholder
We are pleased to present to you the Galapagos

Euronext Brussels and Amsterdam in May, when

Annual Report for 2005, a year in which

we raised € 22.4 million. The offering was the

Galapagos has made several bold moves, has

first successful IPO by a biotechnology company

grown strongly and has come to be recognized

on Euronext in several years, a credit to the

as an important European biotechnology

quality of our Company’s science, technology

company. We find ourselves in a phase of

and management. Following the offering,

acceleration that continues into 2006.

the share price has performed well. Second,
Galapagos successfully acquired BioFocus plc in
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During 2005 we accomplished two major steps

October through an all-share offer and a listing

towards evolving from a privately held into a

on the London AIM. By joining forces with

high-growth listed company. The first step

BioFocus, Galapagos has achieved critical mass

was our successful Initial Public Offering on

in drug discovery and has become an integrated

S
player spanning all workflows from target discovery

In our in-house drug discovery, we have made

to the selection of candidate drugs. This acquisition

considerable progress in our bone and joint disease

considerably expands the revenues from our services

programs and are accelerating these toward the clinic.

business and accelerates our in-house proprietary drug

In our rheumatoid arthritis program we have obtained

discovery programs in bone and joint diseases.

Proof of Concept in an animal disease model with orally

With the integration of BioFocus, all of our product

active proprietary compounds that we developed against

and service activities now operate under the BioFocus

our novel rheumatoid arthritis protein targets. These

brand name, with facilities in Saffron Walden, UK and in

results have validated our drug discovery engine and

Leiden, The Netherlands.

demonstrated the power of the platform to identify
novel targets and develop orally active compounds.

BioFocus has recently expanded its business with

Our programs in osteoarthritis and osteoporosis have

existing drug discovery partners such as Amgen,

also progressed well with successful screens completed

Boehringer Ingelheim and Serono, and has attracted

against several novel targets for these diseases. In

a number of new partners. In a competitive market

addition to the growing success of building our

place, with increasing pressure from lower cost-base

internal drug pipeline, we continually seek in-licensing

economies, we believe that we are winning these

opportunities for later-stage drug candidates, when we

contracts based on our ability to deliver results through

believe such candidates could accelerate the growth of

our expertise in drug discovery, our innovative product

our pipeline.

offerings, our quality of work and our proven track
record. Our partners see their programs accelerate

Total revenues in 2005 amounted to € 11.2 million,

and yield results through their alliances with BioFocus.

with a net loss of € 6.5 million. The BioFocus plc

We remain confident that our competitive ability going

activities have been consolidated with Galapagos

forward will result in strong revenue growth.

since October 17, 2005. Within the Galapagos group,
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

the BioFocus service division generated € 9.1

been and will be critical to our success. We

million revenues. Galapagos invested € 6.7

see strengths and synergies in the interaction

million in its therapeutic programs. Through

between our people in the UK, The Netherlands,

the IPO, the Company’s cash position increased

Belgium, and the USA. We have been successful

to € 23.6 million by December 31, 2005. Our

in attracting staff with superior qualifications

proprietary platform for drug discovery is the

and ambitions, as we operate within a culture

core competency of our Company, and our

of creativity, hard work and autonomy. Results

business strategy is tailored to maximize the

are what count, and our people are dedicated to

value of this competency. We will continue to

moving the Company forward toward its goals.

operate a hybrid business model, combining a
profitable service and product division, BioFocus,

Since our IPO, visibility and market support for

with the development of a therapeutic pipeline

Galapagos has been increasing, with healthy

in bone and joint diseases through Galapagos.

trading volumes. This year, we anticipate

We believe that this combination is a powerful

demonstrating further to shareholders how our

basis to build a sustainable biotech company and

business model creates significant long-term

create long-term shareholder value.

value and how the bold moves we are making
accelerate this value creation. We look forward
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The people at Galapagos and BioFocus are

to your support as we build a leadership position

the core of the company and teamwork has

in European biotechnology.

Onno van de Stolpe

Raj Parekh

Chief Executive Officer

Chairman of the Board

COMPANY PROFILE

Galapagos aims to accelerate
the discovery of novel drugs
We create value in two major ways: by developing

and effective chemistry, and we add quality

our own therapeutic pipeline in bone and joint

throughout the stages of the discovery process.

diseases and by leveraging our target and drug

This will lead to improved attrition rates and

discovery expertise to the pharmaceutical and

faster time to market for breakthrough drugs

biotechnology industry through our BioFocus

for Galapagos as well as for our partners and

service division.

customers.

Using our patented technologies and leading

With an international staff of over 200, including

expertise, we enter the drug discovery process

80 PhDs, our people drive the innovation behind

with superior starting points and efficient

our success.
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BIOFOCUS OPERATIONS
From gene-to-candidatedrugs

THE BIOFOCUS

DIFFERENCE

Testament to the versatility of BioFocus’

At BioFocus our goal is singular – to accelerate

technology and know-how is our ability to work

our partners’ drug discovery programs.

on any target class, in any disease area, and

We achieve this by applying our biological

any stage from target discovery through to the

target discovery platform and our innovative

delivery of candidate drugs for a broad-range of

approaches in compound screening and

partners.

medicinal chemistry. We operate a fully
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integrated drug discovery process - from the

BioFocus has a strong track record in its ongoing

identification of drug targets through to the

and newly established collaborations with

delivery of candidate drugs. This allows BioFocus

pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies

to effectively reduce drug discovery timelines.

worldwide. Amgen and Prolysis have recently

Our experienced team ensures that this process

renewed their agreements with BioFocus, while

is carried out to the standards of the world’s

Boehringer Ingelheim and Idenix have entered

leading pharmaceutical and biotechnology

into new agreements with BioFocus for their

companies.

discovery programs.

BioFocus works with most of the world’s largest pharma-

SUPERIOR

ceutical companies, a clear recognition of our expertise.

BioFocus’ proprietary target discovery and validation

Examples of collaborations are the long-standing

technology is the cornerstone of the Company’s

partnership with Johnson & Johnson, the multi-year

innovation. This technology platform is based on

alliance in asthma with GlaxoSmithKline, and the recently

adenoviruses that efficiently introduce human gene

established collaborations with Novartis and BASF.

sequences into a wide variety of human cells to knock-

STARTING POINTS

in or knock-down specific proteins. High-throughput,
We are also very pleased to work closely with patient

high-fidelity assays that represent a model of a selected

foundations and charities as 2005 saw the start

human disease state are used to identify proteins that

of collaborations with the High Q Foundation for

have causal effects in those disease models.

Huntington Disease, the Cystic Fibrosis Foundation and
Cancer Research Technology UK. We look to expand

BioFocus performs a turnkey in-house advanced contract

our interactions with patient foundations and similar

research service in target discovery and validation

organizations going forward.

for clients. We develop customer specific biological
assays that represent disease models. These assays are

In addition to the external collaborations mentioned

subsequently used to analyze the BioFocus collections

above, BioFocus will continue contributing to the

of thousands of arrayed adenoviruses that contain the

progression of Galapagos’ internal drug discovery

knock-in and knock-down gene sequences. After further

programs in rheumatoid arthritis, osteoporosis and

validation studies, the corresponding protein targets form

osteoarthritis.

the basis for the development of drugs by our partners.
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Additional revenue is generated from the sale of

quality compounds that have been shown to

individual adenoviruses, or large screening sets

accelerate the generation of new candidate

(covering, for example, an entire drugable class

drugs.

of target proteins) from the collection.
BioFocus complements these industry-leading
In addition to our target discovery services

libraries with a full range of pre-clinical expertise

and products, we combine our expertise in

for discovery biology, medicinal chemistry and

medicinal chemistry, biology, pharmacokinetics

molecular informatics. Furthermore, we are

and informatics to produce biologically-targeted

recognized experts in three key target areas for

®

screening libraries. Our SoftFocus libraries are

drug discovery – kinases, GPCRs and ion channels.

designed to bind specific drugable protein classes

page 8

and to have bio-availability characteristics.

KEEPING

This advanced design results in extremely high

At BioFocus we aim to maintain our cutting-edge

OUR CUTTING EDGE

ACCELERATING TARGET DISCOVERY

“…we keep the big
picture of target
discovery and
validation in mind
every step of the
way”

REMKO CLASEN
ASSOCIATE SCIENTIST BIOFOCUS, Leiden, The Netherlands
“At BioFocus, we keep the big picture of target discovery and validation in mind every step of the way. In our asthma alliance with
GlaxoSmithKline, we have set-up a critical path of experiments and work closely aligned with GSK’s R&D team to apply this plan to
every step of the screening and validation process. This way, once a target has fulfilled these criteria, GSK can move directly into
compound screening without undertaking any further “validation” of the target. It’s really great to be a part of this collaboration
and to see how our expertise complements GSK’s to accelerate their drug discovery programs.”

OVERVIEW OF PHASES IN THE DRUG DISCOVERY PROCESS

Target
identification

Target
validation

Hit
identification

Hit to lead

Lead
optimization

Preclinical
studies

Clinical
trials
I, II, III
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BIOFOCUS OPERATIONS

capabilities on target and drug discovery research.

EXPERTISE

The development of new adenoviral and chemical

People are what make the difference at

libraries is a continuous focus, as is further

BioFocus. Our scientists really know the business

improving our current screening collections for

of drug discovery. Many of them have joined us

both target and lead discovery, and expanding

from successful careers in top pharmaceutical

our medicinal chemistry and pre-clinical service

companies, bringing with them a thorough

capabilities.

understanding of the day-to-day pressures faced
in demanding research environments. Through

The goals for BioFocus in 2006 include the

these specialists, BioFocus has the expertise

expansion of our existing biologically-targeted

and leadership necessary to move from a target

SoftFocus collections as well as the design of

to a candidate drug. Both Galapagos’ internal

new types of compound libraries. We pioneered

research program and BioFocus’ customers will

the compound library market with our SoftFocus

be able to take advantage of this experience to

collections and continue to keep our leading

further progress their drug discovery programs.

edge in this market by developing new libraries
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based on the latest scientific approaches. Our

LEADING

recently announced collaboration with Cresset

Through our integration of two discovery

Biomolecular Discovery aims to introduce new

engines, we provide a suite of complementary

thinking into compound library design. Our new

biology and chemistry services to a broad base of

range of 2006 libraries will include FieldFocus™

customers, offering turnkey projects from target

and ThemePair™ libraries to further our

discovery through to the delivery of candidate

customers’ abilities to find “hits” for high-value

drugs. With our improved technologies,

drug targets in drugable classes such as GPCRs,

extended and new collaborations with

kinases and ion channels. In addition, we will

pharmaceutical, biotech and patient foundations,

expand our target discovery adenoviral libraries

and newly recruited, highly qualified staff,

to silence additional protein classes and enhance

BioFocus is accelerating its ambition to become

our adenoviral library screening capabilities with

the leading provider of gene-to-candidate-drug

multi-endpoint screens.

services in Europe.

DRUG DISCOVERY PROVIDER

ACCELERATING DRUG DISCOVERY

“The key to this
rapid progress is our
multi-disciplinary
approach to drug
discovery”

WOLFGANG SCHMIDT, PHD
PRINCIPAL SCIENTIST BIOFOCUS, Saffron Walden, UK
“Over the past five years, I have worked on generating compound diversity around “hits” coming out of our SoftFocus screens.
More recently, I have applied this expertise as project leader for one of Galapagos’ drug discovery programs. In just one year, we
have progressed the project from the initial hit stage to promising lead compounds. The key to this rapid progress is our multidisciplinary approach to drug discovery. Not only were the initial screening compounds designed with the target biology in mind,
but I am constantly in touch with our team of computational chemists whose insight helps to further advance the project and
optimize Galapagos’ patent position.”

SELECTED COLLABORATIONS ANNOUNCED IN 2005

Organization

Type of collaboration

GlaxoSmithKline

Asthma target discovery alliance

Amgen

Ion channel drug discovery collaboration

Senexis

Alzheimer Disease drug discovery program

Cystic Fibrosis Foundation

Target discovery alliance

Novartis UK

Target validation collaboration

High Q Foundation

Huntington Disease target discovery alliance

Prolysis

Medicinal chemistry support

Serono

Medicinal chemistry support

Idenix Pharmaceuticals

Drug discovery collaboration

page 11

ACCELERATIO
2005
GALAPAGOS

N

DRUG DISCOVERY
Galapagos’ therapeutic pipeline in bone and

and developing new medicines. Because of the

joint diseases is accelerating toward clinical

unique features of our target discovery platform,

development to address a € 21 billion market.

we believe that there is an increased chance of
translating an observed disease-modifying effect

Our pipeline is based on a number of small

into a therapeutic effect in man, leading to lower

molecules that target a specific set of human

attrition rates than those currently experienced

proteins, which are causitive for rheumatoid

in the industry. Our aim is to use these drug

arthritis, osteoporosis or osteoarthritis. Galapagos

targets to build a pipeline of new chemical entities

has identified these proteins through a rigorous

to treat bone and joint diseases, an area with a

validation process using our proprietary adenoviral

great unmet medical need and a rapidly growing

technology and cellular disease models based on

market size.

human primary cells, cells that originate directly
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from the human body. These proteins then

We have identified several targets for which

form the subsequent starting points as targets

there are, or have been, molecules in the clinic,

for drug discovery, the process of identifying

but for different therapeutic indications.

We have validated several of these molecules for the new

Galapagos’ rheumatoid arthritis targets were

indication based on our cellular disease models. Since

discovered and validated in disease-relevant assays

these “fast-follower molecules” have seen advanced

that use cells (primary synovial fibroblasts) derived

stages of the discovery process, they have a greatly

from rheumatoid arthritis patients. A number of these

shortened time towards clinical development. Moreover,

targets are being progressed through Galapagos’

these fast-follower molecules provide chemical validation

internal drug discovery program yielding rapid

of our novel targets and are attractive starting points in

results. Towards the end of 2005, a lead compound,

designing related compounds for the targeted disease.

from a series that was designed against the most
advanced kinase target, successfully demonstrated

In addition to our internal programs, we plan to

an in vivo Proof of Concept in the industry standard

strengthen and complement Galapagos’ pipeline by

rheumatoid arthritis animal model. In this mouse

selectively acquiring candidate drugs. These products

model, the molecule modulated pro-inflammatory

in the development phase will enable us to build the

cytokines (regulatory proteins that mediate the

infrastructure necessary to pursue (pre-)clinical studies

immune response) such as TNF-alpha and those

with our internally developed compounds as well as

interleukins that are known to play a pivotal role in

complement Galapagos’ current drug development

the arthritis process. It showed little, if any, effect on

program to create a balanced and well-filled pipeline.

other cytokines required to maintain normal immune
responses. More recently, the lead compound showed

BLOCKING

JOINT DESTRUCTION

a reduction in paw swelling in the mouse animal

Galapagos aims to develop oral therapeutics to reduce

model. These results provide strong evidence that

and even stop the joint destruction and inflammation

chemical compounds developed to interact with our

that characterize rheumatoid arthritis. As we focus

proprietary targets can influence the intended disease.

on inhibiting the wide range of triggers that cause

We will now focus our resources on accelerating this

the disease, we expect to develop a safe drug to treat

compound series, fast-follower molecules and the rest

rheumatoid arthritis.

of the target portfolio towards clinical development.
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REDUCING

CARTILAGE DEGRADATION

STRONGER BONES

Our osteoarthritis program focuses on identifying

As osteoporosis is an age-related disorder

disease-modifying therapies for treating early

characterized by low bone mass and structural

stages of osteoarthritis, a degenerative disease

deterioration of bone tissue, we choose to

caused by a loss of cartilage in the joint and

focus our research efforts on targets whose

progressive joint destruction. Such therapies

modulation induces the formation of bone.

would contribute greatly to the treatment of

Small molecules that specifically bind to these

osteoarthritis because currently available drugs

targets should lead to disease-modifying

relieve only the symptoms of the disease (pain)

therapies. Such new drugs may have advantages

but do not affect the disease process itself.

over currently available products that act to

We are developing small molecule compounds

preserve bone mass, as our approach potentially

that stimulate build-up of cartilage in

will deliver a drug that is able to add bone mass

chondrocytes, the cells affected in osteoarthritis.

and induce bone healing. We have identified

In this program, we have identified chemical

small molecules that interact with one of the

compounds, “hits”, that interact with targets

targets from our cell-based screening assays.

from our osteoarthritis target discovery program.

These molecules will be progressed towards

We also investigate targets that are involved in

a lead molecule series. We also evaluate fast-

the break-down of cartilage. By addressing both

follower molecules in this program and will

build-up and break-down of cartilage, we believe

pursue further drug discovery to accelerate the

that we can develop drugs that result in an

time towards clinical development.

effective increase in cartilage and thereby revert
the disease in osteoarthritis patients.
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BUILDING

ACCELERATING GALAPAGOS’ INTERNAL PIPELINE

“…we moved from
concept to validated
targets in less than
18 months”

REGINALD BRYS, PHD
DEPARTMENT HEAD, TARGET DISCOVERY & VALIDATION GALAPAGOS, Mechelen, BeLGIUM
“Since joining Galapagos, we have progressed rapidly from a technology driven company to become experts in bone and joint
disease biology and drug discovery. Using cell-based assays that mimic rheumatoid arthritis disease biology, we moved from
concept to validated targets in less than 18 months. These same robust, cell-based assays are used in our compound screening
campaigns, which enables us to provide quick biological feedback to the chemists who develop hit and lead compounds based on
our validated targets. Being a part of the arthritis discovery project from the beginning has really given us insight into the disease
biology and been a key component in accelerating our drug discovery campaign.”

REVENUE
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ACCELERATING CAREERS

“I look forward
to seeing my role
within the Company
grow even further”

MARLIJN VAN ZUTPHEN
SCIENTIST BIOFOCUS, Leiden, The Netherlands
“My role at Galapagos has really evolved to fit my individual strengths in project management and science. Over the past six years,
I have learned a lot from the various projects I have worked on for customers, and I now apply this knowledge as a project manager
for several target discovery programs. What I like most about working at Galapagos is the variety. In a given day, I do anything
from planning and performing experiments, to presenting and discussing results with customers, to writing reports for project
steering committees. I am excited that Galapagos has entrusted me with this diverse range of activities and look forward to seeing
my role within the Company grow even further.”

WHERE

WHERE

WE ARE FROM

AUSTRALIA

ITALY

AUSTRIA

JAPAN

BELGIUM

THE NETHERLANDS

CANADA

PORTUGAL

CHINA

SOUTH AFRICA

FRANCE

SPAIN

GERMANY

SUDAN

HUNGARY

TRINIDAD

WE ARE LOCATED
Mechelen,
Belgium
56 employees
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INDIA

UK

IRELAND

USA

7 nationalities
201 employees
20 nationalities

Saffron Walden,

Leiden,

United Kingdom

The Netherlands

114 employees

31 employees

14 nationalities

9 nationalities
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ANNUAL REPORT
ANNUAL REPORT

GALAPAGOS ANNUAL REPORT 2005
This document, Galapagos Annual Report 2005, contains the required information for an annual brochure, as
per the Belgian Code of Companies.

LANGUAGE OF THE ANNUAL REPORT
According to Belgian law, Galapagos must publish its Annual Report in Dutch. The Company has also
prepared an English translation. In case of differences in interpretation, the Dutch version takes precedence.
Galapagos is responsible for the translation and conformity between the Dutch and English versions.
AVAILABILITY OF THE ANNUAL REPORT
This document is available to the public free of charge and upon request:
Galapagos NV
Investor Relations
Generaal De Wittelaan L11 A3
B-2800 Mechelen, Belgium
Tel: +32 15 34 29 00
ir@glpg.com
For informational purposes, an electronic version of the Annual Report 2005 is available on the website of
Galapagos, www.glpg.com.
Only the printed version of the Annual Report 2005 is legally valid. Galapagos will use reasonable efforts to
ensure the accuracy of the electronic version of the Annual Report, but does not assume responsibility if
inaccuracies or inconsistencies with the printed document arise as a result of any electronic transmission.
Other information on the website of Galapagos or on other websites do not form a part of this Annual
Report.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
The Annual Report 2005 may contain forward-looking statements, including, without limitation, statements
containing the words “believes”, “anticipates”, “expects”, “intends”, “plans”, “seeks”, “estimates”, “may”,
“will” and “continues” as well as similar expressions. Such forward-looking statements may involve known
and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which might cause the actual results, financial condition,
performance or achievements of Galapagos, or industry results, to be materially different from any future
results, financial conditions, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. Given these uncertainties, the reader is advised not to place any undue reliance on such
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of publication of
this document. Galapagos expressly disclaims any obligation to update any such forward-looking statements
in this document to reflect any change in its expectations with regard thereto or any change in events,
conditions or circumstances on which any such statement is based, unless required by law or regulation.

2

TABLE OF CONTENTS
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED 2005 ANNUAL FINANCIALS....................................................4
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL RESULTS ........................................... 4
CONSOLIDATED REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS........................................................ 6
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS.................................................................................... 9
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005 ................. 11
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER .............................................................. 12
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY................................ 14
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS............................................................ 15
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE .............................................................................................39
STOCK INFORMATION.....................................................................................................45
CORPORATE INFORMATION ...........................................................................................45

3

AUDITED CONSOLIDATED 2005 ANNUAL FINANCIALS
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL RESULTS
Dear Shareholder:
We are pleased to present to you the Galapagos Annual Report for 2005, a year in which Galapagos has
made several bold moves, grown strongly and has come to be recognized as an important European
biotechnology company. We find ourselves in a phase of acceleration that continues into 2006.
During 2005 we accomplished two major steps towards evolving from a privately held into a high-growth
listed company. The first step was our successful Initial Public Offering on Euronext Brussels and Amsterdam
in May, when we raised € 22.4 million. The offering was the first successful IPO by a biotechnology company
on Euronext in several years, a credit to the quality of our Company’s science, technology and management.
Following the offering, the share price has performed well. Second, Galapagos successfully acquired
BioFocus plc in October through an all-share offer and a listing on the London AIM. By joining forces with
BioFocus, Galapagos has achieved critical mass in drug discovery and has become an integrated player
spanning all workflows from target discovery to the selection of drug candidates. This acquisition
considerably expands the revenues from our services business and accelerates our in-house proprietary drug
discovery programs in bone and joint diseases. With the integration of BioFocus, all of our product and
service activities now operate under the BioFocus brand name, with operations in Saffron Walden, UK and in
Leiden, The Netherlands.
BioFocus has recently expanded its business with existing drug discovery partners such as Amgen,
Boehringer Ingelheim and Serono, and has attracted a number of new partners. In a competitive market
place, with increasing pressure from the lower cost-base economies, we believe that we are winning these
contracts based on our ability to deliver results through our expertise in drug discovery, our innovative
product offerings, our quality of work and our proven track record. Our partners see their programs
accelerate and yield results through their alliances with BioFocus. We remain confident that our competitive
ability going forward will result in strong revenue growth.
In our in-house drug discovery, we have made considerable progress in our bone and joint disease programs
and are accelerating these toward the clinic. In our rheumatoid arthritis program we have obtained Proof of
Concept in an animal disease model with orally active proprietary compounds that we developed against our
novel rheumatoid arthritis protein targets. These results have validated our drug discovery engine and
demonstrated the power of the platform to identify novel targets and develop orally active compounds. Our
programs in osteoarthritis and osteoporosis have also progressed well with successful screens completed
against several novel targets for these diseases. In addition to the growing success of building our internal
drug pipeline, we continually seek in-licensing opportunities for later-stage drug candidates, when we believe
such candidates could accelerate the growth of our pipeline.
Total revenues in 2005 amounted to € 11.2 million, with a net loss of € 7.7 million. The BioFocus plc
activities have been consolidated with Galapagos since October 17, 2005. Within the Galapagos group, the
BioFocus service division generated € 9.1 million revenues. Galapagos invested € 6.7 million in its
therapeutic programs. Through the IPO, the Company’s cash position increased to € 23.6 million by
December 31, 2005. Our proprietary platform for drug discovery is the core competency of our Company,
and our business strategy is tailored to maximize the value of this competency. We will continue to operate
a hybrid business model, combining a profitable service and product division, BioFocus, with the development
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of a therapeutic pipeline in bone and joint diseases through Galapagos. We believe that this combination is a
powerful basis to build a sustainable biotech company and create long-term shareholder value.
The people at Galapagos and BioFocus are the core of the company and teamwork has been and will be
critical to our success. We see strengths and synergies in the interaction between our people in the UK, The
Netherlands, Belgium, and the USA. We have been successful in attracting staff with superior qualifications
and ambitions, as we operate within a culture of creativity, hard work and autonomy. Results are what
count, and our people are dedicated to moving the Company forward toward its goals.
Since our IPO, visibility and market support for Galapagos has been increasing, with healthy trading volumes.
This year, we anticipate demonstrating further to shareholders how our business model creates significant
long-term value and how the bold moves we are making accelerate this value creation. We look forward to
your support as we build a leadership position in European biotechnology.

Onno van de Stolpe
Chief Executive Officer

Raj Parekh
Chairman of the Board
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CONSOLIDATED REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ladies and gentlemen,
Dear shareholders,
We hereby have the pleasure of presenting to you our report relating to the consolidated results of the
Galapagos Group for the financial year that ended on December 31, 2005.
The companies of which the results are consolidated are Galapagos NV (Mechelen, Belgium), Galapagos
Genomics BV (Leiden, The Netherlands) and BioFocus plc and its subsidiaries (Saffron Walden, U.K.).
The results of the BioFocus operations in Saffron Walden are as from 17 October 2005 consolidated with the
results of Galapagos NV and Galapagos Genomics BV

Overview of development, result and position of the Group
In 2005 Galapagos accomplished two major steps towards evolving from a privately held Company into a
high-growth public one. First was the successful Initial Public Offering on Euronext Brussels and Amsterdam
in May, when the Company raised € 22.4 million. Second, Galapagos successfully acquired BioFocus plc in
October 2005 through an all-share offer and a listing on the London AIM.
By joining forces with BioFocus, Galapagos has achieved critical mass in drug discovery and has become an
integrated player spanning all workflows from target discovery to the selection of drug candidates. This
acquisition considerably expands the revenues from our services business and accelerates our in-house
proprietary drug discovery programs in the bone and joint diseases. With the integration of BioFocus, all our
product and service activities operate under the BioFocus brand name, with operations in Saffron Walden,
U.K. and in Leiden, The Netherlands.
In a competitive market place, with increasing pressure from lower cost-base economies, we believe that we
are winning service contracts based on our ability to deliver results through our expertise in drug discovery,
our innovative product offerings, our quality of work and our proven track record. Our partners see their
programs accelerate and yield results through their alliances with BioFocus.
Our proprietary platform for drug discovery is the core competency of our Group, and our business strategy
is tailored to maximize the value of this competency. We will continue to operate a hybrid business model,
combining a profitable service and product division, BioFocus, with developing a therapeutic pipeline in bone
and joint diseases through Galapagos.
In 2005, consolidated revenues amounted to € 11.2 million compared to € 7.8 million in 2004. Revenues are
composed of product revenues, license revenues, service revenues, and government grants and research
collaborations. Significant growth was noted in the service revenues (from € 0.5 million in 2004 to € 4.3
million in 2005) as a result of the consolidation with BioFocus plc service contracts. License revenues went
down from € 1.9 million in 2004 to € 0.7 million in 2005.
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Galapagos operates two business segments, Drug Discovery and the BioFocus division (supply of chemical
compounds and viruses for use in drug discovery and providing drug discovery services to the
pharmaceutical sector). The segments generated € 2.1 million and € 9.1 million respectively.
Cost of sales in 2005 amounted to € 4.8 million compared to € 1.3 million in 2004. The increase is mainly in
personnel costs, and disposables and laboratory fees, which both are a result of BioFocus becoming part of
the Group.
Consolidated expenditures in R&D amounted to € 6.7 million in 2005 compared to € 5.4 million in 2004. The
increase is mainly explained by increased investments in our rheumatoid arthritis and other drug discovery
programs.
Consolidated general and administrative costs increased from € 4.5 million in 2004 to € 5.7 million in 2005,
mainly due to increased costs for personnel and premises, a direct result of the growth of the Group.
Integration costs resulting from the BioFocus acquisition amounted to € 0.3 million.
The consolidated results over 2005 show a net loss of € 6.5 million compared to € 3.6 million in 2004.
The Group’s consolidated cash position at the end of 2005 amounted to € 23.6 million, compared to € 10.3
million at the end of 2004, an increase that is largely attributable to the cash proceeds arising from
Galapagos NV’s IPO of May 2005.
Galapagos had not made use of financial instruments until the acquisition of BioFocus plc. BioFocus had
entered into structured hedge agreements with Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS) on both Euro and US Dollar to
hedge its sterling exposures. In the financial statements the fair value of these exposures has been
determined based on information from the RBS. In February 2006 the Euro hedge expired and will not be
renewed. The US dollar hedge will be reviewed later in 2006.
Typically for a biotechnology company, the Group is confronted with a number of risks and uncertainties,
such as the fact that: (i) Galapagos will need additional capital in the future to sufficiently fund its operations
and research; (ii) there is a high risk that early-stage drug discovery and development might not successfully
generate good drug candidates; (iii) Galapagos might not be able to commercialize its drug candidates
successfully if problems arise in the testing and approval process; (iv) most of Galapagos’ expected future
revenues are contingent upon collaborative and license agreements; (v) Galapagos’ success is dependent on
intellectual property rights held by it and third parties and it’s interest in such rights is complex and
uncertain.
The companies of the Group continued to hold the necessary permits for its exploitation, and environmental
rules were carefully respected.
On the level of staffing, the Company’s core teams have remained stable and all companies of the Group
have been successful in attracting new employees with various types of high-level industry experience,
including in biology, medicinal chemistry and business. The Group’s total number of staff as per 31
December 2005 was 201, of which 56 were based in Belgium, 31 in The Netherlands and 112 in the UK and
2 in the USA.
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Activities in the area of research and development
Consolidated expenditures in research and development amounted to € 6.7 million in 2005 compared to
€ 5.4 million in 2004.
Galapagos’ service business, BioFocus, has in the third quarter of 2005 expanded its business with existing
drug discovery partners such as Amgen and Serono, and has attracted a number of new partners.
In our in-house drug discovery, we have made considerable progress in our bone and joint disease programs
and are accelerating molecules toward clinical developments. In our rheumatoid arthritis program we have
obtained Proof of Concept in an animal disease model with orally active proprietary compounds that we
developed against our novel rheumatoid arthritis protein targets. These results have validated our drug
discovery engine and demonstrated the power of the platform to identify novel targets and develop orally
active compounds. Our programs in osteoarthritis and osteoporosis have also progressed well with
successful screens completed against several novel targets for these diseases. In addition to the growing
success of building our ‘internal’ drug pipeline, we continually seek in-licensing opportunities for later-stage
drug candidates, when we believe such candidates could accelerate the growth of our pipeline.

Significant events that took place after the end of the financial year
On Group level, the following significant events that took place after the end of the financial year are
highlighted:
the appointment of a Chief Financial Officer;
a new collaboration in autoimmune discovery research with Boehringer Ingelheim;
an anti-cancer drug discovery collaboration with Cancer Research Technology;
an extension of the research collaborations with BASF.
Galapagos expects that its current cash position will provide sufficient financial means to support the Group’s
growth in the near future.
Galapagos remains confident that its competitive ability going forward will result in continued revenue growth
and that its hybrid business model is a powerful basis to build a sustainable biotech company and create
long-term shareholder value.

Mechelen, 2 March 2006
The Board of Directors
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING ON THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

To the Shareholders
As required by law and the Company’s articles of association, we are pleased to report to you on the audit
assignment which you entrusted to us.
We examined the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Galapagos NV (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (jointly “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2005 and
the consolidated statements of income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes. The consolidated balance sheet shows total assets
of EUR 80.416 (000) and the consolidated loss for the year then ended amounts to EUR 7.687 (000). We have
also examined the directors' report on the consolidated financial statements.
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and with the legal and regulatory requirements applicable in
Belgium. It is also responsible for the preparation of the directors’ report on the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the legal and regulatory requirements applicable in Belgium and for the
assessment of the information that should be included in this report. Our responsibility as Statutory Auditor is to
examine these documents based on the auditing standards applicable in Belgium for the audit of consolidated
financial statements.
Unqualified audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the “Institut des Réviseurs d’Entreprises/Instituut der
Bedrijfsrevisoren”. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement taking into account the
legal and regulatory requirements applicable to consolidated financial statements in Belgium.
In accordance with these standards, we considered the Group's administrative and accounting organization as
well as its internal control processes. We have obtained the explanations and information required for our audit.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing accounting policies used, the basis for consolidation and significant
estimates made by management as well as evaluating the presentation of the consolidated financial statements
taken as a whole . We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the Group's financial position as
of 31 December 2005 and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with IFRS as adopted by the EU and with the legal and regulatory requirements applicable in Belgium, and the
information given in the notes to the consolidated financial statements is adequate.
Additional attestations
We supplement our report with the following attestations which do not modify our audit opinion on the
consolidated financial statements:
-

We are not in a position to render an opinion as to whether the description of the major risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group and included in the directors’report on the consolidated financial
statements is complete. Apart from the foregoing, the directors’ report on the consolidated financial
statements contains the information required by the Companies Code and is consistent with the
consolidated financial statements.

2 March 2006
The Statutory Auditor

________________________________
DELOITTE Reviseurs d’Entreprises
SC s.f.d. SCRL
Represented by Gert Vanhees

________________________________
DELOITTE Reviseurs d’Entreprises
SC s.f.d. SCRL
Represented by Geert Verstraeten
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005
Thousands of €
Revenues

Notes
4

2005
11,240

2004
7,777

5

-4,829

-1,288

6,411

6,489

5
5
5
5

78
-6,700
-5,737
-421
-281

-5,443
-4,520
-134

5,6

-6,650

-3,608

7
8

368
-369

202
-162

-6,651

-3,568

9

110

-21

NET LOSS FOR THE YEAR

10

-6,541

-3,589

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue (‘000)

10

8,936

5,939

Basic and diluted loss per share in €

10

-0.73

-0.60

Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other income
R&D Expenditure
General and administrative costs
Sales and marketing expenses
Integration costs
Operating loss
Investment revenues
Finance costs
Loss before tax
Taxes
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER
ASSETS
Thousands of €
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Goodwill
Intangible assets
Property, plant, and equipment
Available for sale financial assets
Trade and other receivables
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Thousands of €
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Financial liabilities
Obligations under finance lease
Payroll and tax liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Obligations under finance lease
Trade and other payables
Deferred tax liabilities

Notes
11
12
13
15
16
15
16
17

Notes
23
20
21

21
23
9

TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Capital and reserves
Share premium account
Accumulated losses
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

19

2005
45,018
29,481
4,869
9,399
978
291

2004
3,072

36,545
3,142
9,786
23,617
81,563

12,541
98
2,169
10,274
15,613

2005
14,065
9,568
394
2,967
1.136

2004
3,608
2,766

6,362
4,606
214
1,542

1,638
1,413

20,427

5,246

61,136
69,051
19,816
-27,731
81,563

10,367
31,557

447
2,625

106
736

225

-21,190
15,613
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER
Thousands of €
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

Notes

Result from operations
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plan and equipment
Amortization of intangible fixed assets
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Exchange gain on translation of net assets of
subsidiary

13
12

2005

2004

10,274

13,036

-6,650

-3,608

941
374

763
240
93

-219

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

-5,554

-2,512

943
-2,319
3,377
-7

51
844
-936

Cash used in operations

Interest paid and other financial cost
Taxes

-3,560
-369
42

-2,553

NET CASH FLOWS USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

-3,887

-2,710

-1,061

-103

-50
-2,807

-45

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

-3,918

-148

Repayment of obligations under finance leases
Proceeds of capital increases, net of issue cost
Proceeds from share issues
Interest received and other financial income

-351
20,821
322
368

-106

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

21,160

96

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

13,355

-2,762

(Increase)/decrease
(Increase)/decrease
Increase/(decrease)
Increase/(decrease)

in
in
in
in

inventories
receivables
payables
provisions

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of and expenditure in intangible fixed
assets
Acquisition of subsidiary

Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash
equivalents
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

12
27

7

-157

202

-12
23,617

10,274

13

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Thousands of €
(except number of shares)
Balance on 1 January 2004
Share based compensation
Net loss for the year
Balance on 31 December 2004
Number of shares after 4:1
reverse split
Capital increase
Cost of capital increase
BioFocus acquisition
Share based compensation
Unissued shares for BioFocus
Net loss for the year
Balance on 31 December 2005

Number of
shares
23,754,226

Share
capital
32,369

Share
premium

Other
capital
-817

Retained
earnings
-17,601

13,951

-3,589
-21,190

5
-3,589
10,367

-6,541

22,554
-1,962
33,873
235
2,610
-6,541

-27,731

61,136

5
23,754,226

32,369

5,938,554
3,261,411

17,677

3,474,157

12,674,122

18,934

68,980

-812

4,877
14,939

19,816

-1,962
235
2,610
71

Total

Prior to its initial public offering in May 2005, the company effected a 4:1 reverse share split and abolished
the different classes of shares. The share split resulted in 5,938,554 ordinary shares.
The consolidated financial statements of Galapagos NV (hereafter the “Group”) were approved by the Board
of Directors and authorized for issue on 2 March 2006. They were signed on its behalf by:

Onno van de Stolpe
Executive Director
2 March 2006
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. General information
Galapagos NV (“the Company” or “the Group”) is a limited liability company incorporated in Belgium and has
its registered office at Generaal De Wittelaan L11/A3, 2800 Mechelen, Belgium.
Galapagos NV is a biotechnology company founded in 1999 as a joint venture between Crucell BV and
Tibotec NV, which focuses on the identification of disease modifying drug targets and the subsequent
development of breakthrough medicine based on these targets. These technologies were commercialized
through a separate business unit, which until the acquisition of BioFocus plc (“BioFocus”) operated under the
trade name of Galadeno.
On 6 May 2005 Galapagos NV raised € 22.4 million in an initial public offering on Euronext Brussels (ticker
symbol: GLPG) and Euronext Amsterdam (GLPGA), amounting to a net cash contribution of € 20.8million.
On 17 October 2005 the Company agreed to acquire 100% of the share capital of BioFocus, a company listed
on the Alternative Investment Market (AiM) and incorporated in the United Kingdom when its all share offer
became unconditional. BioFocus plc was immediately de-listed and Galapagos NV was admitted for trading
on AiM (ticker symbol: GLPG). At the balance sheet date the Company owned 92.6% of the issued share
capital of BioFocus plc.
Galapagos NV owns 100% of BioFocus and companies acquired with BioFocus plc include BioFocus Discovery
Limited, Cambridge Drug Discovery Holdings Limited, Cambridge Drug Discovery Limited, Cambridge
Genetics Ltd, all incorporated in the UK and BioFocus Inc, incorporated in the US. BioFocus offers
outsourced drug discovery products and services in discovery biology, medicinal chemistry and molecular
informatics to the global pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries.
Galapagos has a 100% participation in Galapagos Genomics BV, located in Leiden, the Netherlands.
These financial statements are presented in €.
2. Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU. The principal accounting policies used for the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
The Group did not early apply the following Standards and Interpretations which were issued at the date of
authorization of these financial statements but not yet effective on the balance sheet date:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

IFRS 6 (Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Assets)
IFRS 7 (Financial Instruments : Disclosures)
IFRIC 4 (Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease
IFRIC 5 (Rights to Interests Arising from Decommissioning, Restoration and Rehabilitation Funds)
IFRIC 6 (Liabilities Arising from Participating in a Specific Market-Waste Electrical and Electronic
Equipment)
IFRIC 7 (Applying the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary
Economies)
IFRIC 8 (Scope of IFRS 2)
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The Directors anticipate that the early adoption of these standards and interpretations would have no
material impact on the financial statements.

Group accounting

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year. Together these comprise
the Group. Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an other entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date of
acquisition up to the effective date of disposal.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting
policies used into line with those used by the Group.
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any cost
directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3 are recognized at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are recognized
and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the group’s interest in
the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at
the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognized as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill which is recognized as an asset is reviewed for
impairment at least annually. Any impairment is recognized immediately in profit or loss and is not
subsequently reversed.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rate on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in the period in which it is incurred. An
internally generated intangible asset, arising from the Groups development activities is recognized only if all
of the following conditions are met:
• An asset is created that can be identified;
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•
•

It is probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits; and
The development costs of the assets can be measured reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their useful lives. Where no
internally generated asset can be recognized, development cost is recognized as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.
Intellectual property, which comprises patents, licenses and rights is measured internally at purchase cost
and is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life on the following bases:
• Patents: 10 years; and
• Software: 3-5 years
• In process technology: 3-5 years
• Licenses, patents, brands & know-how: 5-10 years
• Customer relationships: 1-10 years

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recognized at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loss
is recognized. Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their useful lives,
using the straight-line method, on the following bases:
• Laboratory equipment: 4-10 years;
• IT hardware: 3-6 years; and
• Furniture: 4-5 years.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the term of the lease, unless a shorter useful life is expected.
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their useful lives on the same bases as owned assets
or, where shorter, over the term of the relevant lease. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognized in income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost of raw materials comprises
purchase costs. Raw materials are not ordinarily interchangeable and they are as such accounted for using
the specific identification of their individual cost.
The cost of work in progress comprises direct materials, direct labor costs and those overheads that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realizable value
represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in
marketing, selling and distribution.
Small molecule screening libraries are stated at cost on acquisition and written off over their useful economic
lives, calculated by reference to utilization, but which in any event cannot exceed 5 years.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the Group’s balance sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for irrecoverable amounts.
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Available for sale financial assets

Available for sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value are recognized directly in equity until the security is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity is included in the net profit or loss for
the period. Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for equity investments classified as available for
sale are not subsequently reversed through profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss for
debt instruments classified as available for sale are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of
the instrument can be objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition at the impairment loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at nominal value. For the purposes of the cash
flow statements, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks, other
short highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts. In the balance sheet, bank overdrafts are included in
borrowings as current liabilities.

Trade payables

Trade payables bear no interest and are measured at their nominal value.

Retirement benefit schemes

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.
Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined
contribution schemes where the Group’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

Taxation

Deferred income tax is provided in full using the “balance sheet liability method”, on temporary differences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes.
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the balance
sheet date. Deferred tax assets relating to tax losses carried forward are recognized to the extent that is
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

Foreign currencies

The separate financial statements of each group company are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements, the results and financial position of each group company are expressed in €, which is
the functional currency of Galapagos NV and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.
Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that
are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Nonmonetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Gains and losses arising on
translation are included in net profit or loss for the period, except for exchange differences arising on nonmonetary assets and liabilities where the changes in fair value are recognized directly in equity.
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Revenue recognition

The group generates revenues from the sale of products, providing research and development services,
revenue from target discovery and development activities, license or royalty agreements and from grants.
The revenue recognition policy can be summarized as follows:
• Sales of libraries and reagents are recognized as product revenue when shipped;
• Contract research and development services are recognized as service revenues at fair value as such
services are rendered. These services are usually in the form of a defined number of the Group’s fulltime equivalent (“FTE”) at a specified rate per FTE;
• Sales from the BioFocus business unit typically comprise multiple elements combined in one or more
license agreements. The elements in such multiple element arrangements are accounted for as follows:
Upfront non-refundable license fees are only recognized as revenue at fair value when products were
delivered and/or services were rendered in a separate transaction and the Group has fulfilled all
conditions and obligations under the related agreement. In case of continuing involvement of the
Group, the upfront fee would not be regarded as a separate transaction and the upfront non
refundable license fees will be deferred at fair value over the period of the collaboration;
Library and technology access fees are recognized as license revenue over the period in which access
is granted;
Fees charged for library information are recognized as license revenue when delivered, only if the
Group has no continuing involvement in the use of the information, otherwise revenue is recognized
similarly as upfront non refundable license fees;
Fees for options to negotiate or license are recognized as license revenue at fair value, over the
option period unless the Group has no continuing involvement with the licensed targets, in which
case such fees are recognized as license revenue when earned;
Technical milestone payments are recognized as license revenues when earned, unless the Group
has continuing involvement in the development, in which case the technical milestone revenue is
ratably recognized over the remaining period of collaboration;
Royalties are recorded as license revenue when earned;
The Group receives operational grants from certain governmental agencies, which support the
Group’s research and development efforts in defined projects. These grants generally aim to partly
reimburse approved expenditures incurred as defined in research and development efforts of the
Group and are credited to the profit and loss account when the relevant expenditure has been
incurred and there is reasonable assurance that the grant is receivable.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are measured by the fair value of the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial risk management

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge foreign currency risks.

Research & Development costs

Research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred. The group capitalizes development costs
as intangible assets only if the criteria for internally generated intangible assets are met, otherwise such
costs are expensed. The Group considers that the regulatory and clinical risks inherent to the development
of clinical targets preclude it from capitalizing the development costs incurred in its drug development
business.

The Group as lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
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Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of the Group at their fair value or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Lease payments are treated as
consisting of capital and interest elements and the interest is charged directly against income so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are also
spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other
assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the asset might be impaired. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. The estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is estimated to be less than the carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at re-valued amount, in which
case the impairment is treated as a revaluation decrease.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as income, unless the relevant asset is carried at
re-valued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment is treated as a revaluation increase.

Net loss per share

Basic net loss per share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted net loss per share, if any, is computed based on the weighted-average number of shares
outstanding including the dilutive effect of warrants.

Share-based payments

The Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 share-based payments. In accordance with the
transitional provisions, IFRS 2 has been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002
that were unvested as of 1 January 2003.
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees, directors and consultants.
Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value
determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest.
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Fair value is measured by use of the Black & Scholes model. The expected life used in the model has been
adjusted based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions,
and behavioral considerations.
3. Segment reporting

Business segments

For management purposes, the Group is divided into two operating divisions: Drug Discovery and BioFocus.
These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.
Principal activities are as follows:

Drug discovery

Internal drug discovery programs focused on finding new drugs against diseases that affect the joints and
bones. It has successfully discovered and validated novel targets in the bone and joint diseases
osteoarthritis, osteoporosis and rheumatoid arthritis, as well as in asthma and Alzheimer’s disease.
Proprietary target sets resulting from these programs are used for the group’s internal development
programs, combined with selected out-licensing and partnering of projects during development.

BioFocus

The division is a supplier of tools and reagents for use in target and drug discovery and it provides discovery
services to the pharmaceutical sector as well as the Drug Discovery division of Galapagos. The Group has
built a unique technology platform to identify novel drug targets by their function, using collections of
adenoviruses with human gene sequences to knock-down or knock-in specific human proteins in diseasemimicking cellular assays. This technology enables an efficient analysis of the function of individual human
proteins in disease processes. The Group previously provided access to this platform through the services
business unit Galadeno, but after the acquisition of BioFocus has used the BioFocus trade name. In addition
BioFocus has a range of focused collections of small molecules that are marketed under the SoftFocus® and
Thematic Analysis™ trade names. BioFocus provides biology and medicinal chemistry services to accelerate
the customer programs toward the clinic. In doing so it has formed numerous partnerships with leading
pharmaceutical, nutraceutical and biotechnology companies.
All of the Group’s operations are continuing.
Segment information about these businesses for the year ended 31 December 2005 is presented below. No
segment information is provided for the year ended 31 December 2004 as segments were only created part
way through 2004 so as to provide separate financial accounting for the business units Drug Discovery and
Galadeno, the former services division prior to the acquisition of BioFocus.
Revenue
Thousands of €
External sales
Inter-segment sales
Segment revenue

Drug Discovery

BioFocus

2,120

9,120
262
9,382

2,120

Eliminations

Total
11,240

-262
-262

11,240

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates
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RESULT
Thousands of €
Segment result
Unallocated expenses
G & A costs
Integration costs
Group operating loss
Net finance costs
Loss before taxation
Income tax credit/(expense)

Drug Discovery

BioFocus

-4,213

3,581

Eliminations

Total
-632
-5,737
-281
-6,650
-1
-6,651
110

Net profit for the year
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Thousands of €

-6,541

Drug Discovery

BioFocus

Eliminations

Total

Segment assets
Unallocated assets
Total assets

26,247

27,721

-1,886

26,247

27,721

-1,886

52,082
29,481
81,563

Segment liabilities
Total liabilities

6,764
6,764

15,549
15,549

-1,886
-1,886

20,427
20,427

Drug Discovery

BioFocus

Eliminations

Total

Capital additions
- Property plant and equipment

890

807

1,697

- Intangible assets
Depreciation
Amortization

35
460
159

15
482
215

50
942
374

OTHER INFORMATION
Thousands of €

The Group's operations are located in Belgium, The Netherlands and United Kingdom. The Group's Drug
Discovery division is located in Belgium and its BioFocus division is located in The Netherlands and United
Kingdom. The following table provides an analysis of the Group's sales to external customers by
geographical market, irrespective of the goods and services:
Thousands of €
United Kingdom
Europe
United States
Rest of World
Total

2005
2,082
5,010
3,845
303
11,240

%
18.5
44.6
34.2
2.7
100

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and additions to property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets analyzed by the geographical area in which the assets are located:
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Thousands of €
Belgium
The Netherlands
United Kingdom
Total

Carrying amount of
segment assets
2005
2,332
1,120
10,816
14,268

Additions to property, plant &
equipment and intangible assets
2005
924
518
304
1,746

4. Revenues
Thousands of €
Product revenue
License revenue
Service revenue
Government grants & research collaborations
Total

2005
4,148
700
4,272
2,120
11,240

2004
2,789
1,918
522
2,548
7,777

2005
-1,914
-1,770

2004
-703
-368
42
102
-361

5. Operating result
Result from operations has been arrived after charging:

Cost of sales
Thousands of €
Personnel costs
Disposables and lab fees
Capitalization of SilenceSelect
Grants earned on SilenceSelect
Depreciation
Other operating expenses
Total

-719
-426
-4,829

-1,288

2005
-3,128
-1,401
-1,780
-391
-6,700

2004
-2,619
-1,473
-919
-432
-5,443

2005
-2,269
-1,523
-481
-964
-283
-217
-5,737

2004
-1,349
-628
-605
-694
-303
-941
-4,520

R&D Expenditure
Thousands of €
Personnel costs
Disposables and lab fees
Subcontracting
Depreciation
Total

General and administrative costs
Thousands of €
Personnel costs
Premises costs
Professional fees
Director fees
Depreciation
Other operating expenses
Total

23

Sales and marketing expenses
Thousands of €
Personnel costs
Other operating expenses
Total

2005
-249
-172
-421

2004
-134
-134

Integration costs of € 281,000 relate mainly to compensation for loss of office and professional fees on the
acquisition of BioFocus plc.
6. Personnel costs
The number of employees at the end of the year was:

Executive Directors
Laboratory staff
G&A staff
Total

2005
6
153
42
201

2004
2
46
20
68

2005
4
75
27
105

2004
2
55
22
79

2005
5,165
1,454
256
685
7,560

2004
4,221
796
159
324
5,500

The average number of employees during the year was:

Executive Directors
Laboratory staff
G&A staff
Total
Their aggregate remuneration comprised:
Thousands of €
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs
Other costs
Total

The total remuneration of Executive Committee was € 1,349,000 in 2005 (2004: € 620,000)
7. Investment revenues
Thousands of €
Interest on bank deposits
Interest on short term deposits
Total

2005
203
165
368

2004
197
5
202

8. Finance costs
Thousands of €
Interest on obligations under finance lease
Other financial costs
Total

2005
-293
-76
-369

2004
-128
-34
-162
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9. Taxes
There is no current tax accounted for in any of the periods presented. The following table provides a
reconciliation of the deferred taxes charged or credited to the income statement.
Accelerated
Inventory
capital
step-up
Finance
Intangible
allowances
adjustment
Thousands of €
leases fixed assets
Total
At 1 January 2004
59
-185
-78
-204
(Charge)/credit to income
-59
47
-9
-21
At 31 December 2004
(Charge)/credit to income
Acquisition of subsidiary
Exchange differences

-138
76
-1,082
13

-87
-14
-194
3

48
-168
1

-225
110
-1,444
17

At 31 December 2005

-1,131

-292

-119

-1,542

The Group has not recognized a deferred tax asset on the tax loss carry forward on the basis that at
December 31, 2005 and 2004 it was not probable that sufficient future taxable profits would exist in the
foreseeable future against which the unused tax losses can be utilized. Unused tax losses carried forward at
December 31, 2005 and 2004 amounted to € 53,200,000 and € 22,083,000 respectively.
The weighted average applicable tax rate in 2005 was 31.6% (2004: 33.99%). The reduction compared to
2004 is caused by the use of UK corporation tax rates of 30% in calculating deferred tax arising on
consolidation of BioFocus plc.
10. Loss per Share
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the net result attributable to shareholders by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares issued during the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by the
Company, held as treasury shares.
Thousands of €
Result for the purpose of basic loss per share, being net loss

2005
-6,541

2004
-3,589

Number of shares (thousands)
Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of loss per share

8,936

5,939

Basic and diluted loss per share

-0.73

-0.60

The Group had two categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares: warrants and anti-dilution warrants. The
anti-dilution warrants have been cancelled by the Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting held on 29 March
2005, subject to the condition precedent of the realization of the projected public offering. As the Group is
reporting a net loss, the warrants have an anti-dilutive effect rather than a dilutive effect. Consequently,
basic and diluted loss per share are the same.
11. Goodwill
Goodwill of € 29,481,000 acquired through business combinations, has been allocated to the BioFocus cashgenerating unit (CGU) for annual impairment testing.
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The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value in use calculations. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculations are those regarding discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to
selling prices and direct costs during the period. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on
past practices and expectations of future changes in market.
The Group prepared cash flows based on a discount rate of 10% and a range of industry growth rates
ranging from conservative to more modest growths. Under all scenarios it was not felt that an impairment to
the goodwill was necessary.
There are no intangible fixed assets with indefinite useful lives.
12. Intangible assets

Thousands of €
Acquisition value
At 1 January 2004
Additions
At 31 December 2004
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Additions
Exchange differences
At 31 December 2005

Brands,
licenses,
patents &
know-how

In process
technology

Software
&
databases

344
42

263
3

909

1,516
45

2,591

386
619

-24

-6

266
839
35
-8

909
741
15
-7

1,561
4,790
50
-45

2,567

999

1,132

1,658

6,356

95

178
47

603
190

781
332

Customer
relationships

Depreciation and writedowns
At 1 January 2004
Charge for the year

Total

At 31 December 2004
Charge for the year

123

95
96

225
112

793
43

1,113
374

At 31 December 2005

123

191

337

836

1,487

41

116

447

795

822

4,869

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2004
At 31 December 2005

2,444

808
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13. Property, plant and equipment
Furniture,
fixtures &
vehicles

Other
tangible
assets

3,347
102
-53

180
1

1,884

5,569
103
-53

158
3
454
-3

3,396
1,105
5,402
-49
-549

181
909
296
-3

1,884
580
129
-1

5,619
1,697
6,281
-56
-549

612

9,305

483

2,592

12,992

28
12

1,722
582
-53

98
33

437
135

2,285
762
-53

At 1 January 2005
Charge for the year
Elimination on disposals

40
13

2,251
705
-343

131
52

572
172

2,994
942
-343

At 31 December 2005

53

2,613

183

744

3,593

At 31 December 2004

118

1,145

50

1,312

2,625

At 31 December 2005

559

6,692

300

1,848

9,399

Land &
buildings

Installation &
machinery

158

At 1 January 2005
Additions
Acquisition of subsidiary
Exchange differences
Disposal
At 31 December 2005

Thousands of €
Acquisition value
At 1 January 2004
Additions
Disposals

Depreciation and write-downs
At 1 January 2004
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals

Total

Carrying amount

14. Inventories
Thousands of €
Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Total

2005
483
431
2,228
3,142

2004
98
98

15. Available for sale financial assets
Available for sales financial assets of € 987,000 (2004: nil) represent an investment in common stock in an
unlisted biotechnology company incorporated in the United States. The shares are not traded on the open
market, however the fair value is based on purchases of the same class of stock during the year.
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16. Trade and other receivables
Thousands of €
Trade receivables
Corporation tax recoverable
Accrued income
Prepayments
Other receivables
Total
Included in current assets
Included in non-current assets

2005
6,646
269
1,024
1,780
358
10,077
9,786
291

2004
1,475
315
379
2,169
2,169

The Group considers that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.
17. Cash and cash equivalents
Thousands of €
Bank balances
Short term deposits
Money market funds
Total

2005
4,672
18,546
399
23,617

2004
1,274
9,000
10,274

The bank balances and cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits have an original maturity of
less than three months. The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value. These cash and
cash equivalents have no restriction upon them.
18. Credit risk
The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and bank balances and trade and other receivables, which
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other receivables. The amounts presented in
the balance sheet are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the Group’s management
based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic environment.
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit rating agencies.
The Group’s trade credit risk is spread over a limited number of highly credit worthy customers, such as large
pharmaceutical companies. There is no history of losses on doubtful accounts.
19. Share capital
On 29 March 2005, an extraordinary Shareholders Meeting resolved to a 1:4 reverse share split after which
the share capital remained the same but was represented by 5,938,554 shares instead of 23,754,226 shares
before the reverse split. It was further resolved to abolish the different classes of shares. Consequently, the
entire share capital consists of one class of share.
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20. Derivative financial instruments

Currency derivatives

The group utilizes currency derivatives to hedge budgeted future cash flows. The foreign currency forward
contracts are denominated in the currencies of the Group’s principle markets.
At the balance sheet date, total notional amount of outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts that the
Group has committed are € 4,800,000 (31 December 2004: € nil).
At 31 December 2005 the fair value of the Group’s currency derivatives is estimated to be € 394,000 (31
December 2004: € nil).
Changes in the value of non-hedging currency derivatives amounting to € 230,000 have been charged to
income during the year (2004: € nil)
The Group does not designate its foreign currency denominated debt as a hedge instrument for the purpose
of hedging the translation of its foreign operations.
21. Finance lease obligations
Thousands of €

Minimum lease payments
2005
2004

Amounts payable under
finance lease
Within one year
In the second to fifth year
After five years
Less future finance charges
Present value of lease
obligations
Less amount due for
settlement within 12 months
Amount due for
settlement after 12
months

3,889
4,498
1,104
9,491
1,918

226
903
1,072
2,201
682

7,573

1,519

Present value of minimum
lease payments
2005
2004
2,972
3,648
953
7,573

106
523
890
1,519

2,967

106

4,606

1,413

It is the Group’s policy to lease certain of its installation and machinery under finance leases. For the year
ended 31 December 2005, the average borrowing rate was 9% (2004: 8.25%). The interest rates were fixed
at the date of the contracts. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements have been
entered into for contingent rental payments.
The fair value of the Group’s lease obligations approximates their carrying value.

22. Operating lease obligations
The Group as Lessee
The Group has rent contracts for office and laboratories which qualify as operating leases as follows:
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Thousands of €
Minimum lease payments under operating leases
recognized in income for the year
Total

2005

2004

1,433
1,433

476
476

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum rent payments,
which fall due as follows:
Thousands of €
Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive
After five years
Total

2005
1,979
3,955
910
6,844

2004
419
668
834
1,921

The annual indexation on the rent is recorded on the face of the income statement.
The Group as Lessor
The Group holds surplus office and manufacturing buildings, which following the consolidation of sites in
2005 are sublet to third parties under non-cancelable operating leases in order to cover costs. Future
minimum rentals receivable under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:
Thousands of €
Within one year
In the second and fifth years inclusive
Total

2005
368
607
975

23. Trade and other payables
Thousands of €
Trade and other payables
Other creditors
Accruals
Deferred income
Total

2005
4,064

2004
836

552
862
4,304
9,782

166
814
950
2,766

24. Retirement benefit schemes
The Group operates defined contribution systems for all of its qualifying employees. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in designated funds.
The total cost of € 355,000 in 2005 (€ 159,000 in 2004) represents contributions payable to these schemes
by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans. At 31 December 2005, contributions due to the
scheme totaled € 50,000.
25. Warrant plans
Presented below is a summary of stock warrant plans activity for the reported periods. After the reverse 4:1
share split 4 warrants of the 1999 and 2002 plans will entitle the warrant holder to subscribe to one share.
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One warrant of the new warrant plans will entitle the warrant holder to subscribe to one share. The
numbers of the warrant plans 1999 and 2002 are divided by 4 to avoid a mixture of rights.
Warrants
730,630
176,537

Weighted
average exercise
price
4.11
4.46

40,750
-76,306

4.00
4.00

-1,500

4.00

Outstanding at 31 December 2004
Exercisable at 31 December 2004

693,574
175,037

4.12
4.47

Granted during the period
Forfeited during the period
Exercised during the period
Expired during the period

456,875
-52,563
-114,474

7.34
5.53
4.60

Outstanding at 31 December 2005
Exercisable at 31 December 2005

983,412
349,930

5.50
4.04

Outstanding at 1 January 2004
Exercisable at 1 January 2004
Granted during the period
Forfeited during the period
Exercised during the period
Expired during the period

At the Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting of 21 December 1999, two warrant plans were established: one
warrant plan was specifically set up to the benefit of the Group’s Belgian management and personnel
("Warrant Plan Belgium 1999") whereas the second warrant plan was established for the personnel of the
Group’s subsidiary ("Warrant Plan Netherlands 1999").
At the Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting of 29 March 2005, a warrant plan in favor of directors,
management and personnel was approved (Warrant plan 2005) subject to the condition precedent of the
realization of the projected public offering.
Warrant plans 1999

Warrant plan Belgium 1999

Pursuant to the Warrant Plan Belgium 1999, a total number of 137,335 warrants were issued to and
subscribed by the Galapagos NV. At 31 December, 2005, an aggregate number of 60,538 warrants were
granted to directors, management and personnel of Galapagos NV, of which 40,438 warrants are still
outstanding. The warrants have a term of eight years. The warrants can be exercised at the latest on 15
December 2009. Each vested warrant entitles the warrant holder to subscribe for one Share. The exercise
price of the warrants is the highest of either €4 or the price against which the most recent capital increase
occurred prior to the date of the offer of the warrants.

Warrant plan Netherlands 1999

At 31 December 2005, no more warrants are outstanding under the Warrant Plan Netherlands 1999.
Warrant plans 2002
At the Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting of 1 March 2002, one warrant plan was approved in favor of the
management and personnel of Galapagos NV ("Warrant Plan Belgium 2002") and a second warrant plan in
favor of management and personnel of Galapagos NV’s subsidiary ("Warrant Plan Netherlands 2002").
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Warrant plan Belgium 2002

Pursuant to the Warrant Plan Belgium 2002, a total number of 753,250 warrants were issued to and
subscribed by Galapagos NV. At 31 December 2005, an aggregate number of 793,705 warrants were
allotted to directors, management and personnel of Galapagos NV, of which 625,286 warrants are still
outstanding at 31 December 2005. The warrants have a term of eight years. The warrants can be exercised
at the latest on 1 February 2012. According to the original provisions of the Warrant Plan Belgium 2002,
each vested warrant entitled the warrant holder to subscribe for one share.
The Board of Directors determines the exercise price of the warrants at the moment the warrants are offered
to a beneficiary, in accordance with the specific exercise price provisions in the Warrant Plan Belgium 2002.
The Warrant Plan Belgium 2002 provides that, if the Galapagos NV’s shares are listed or traded on a stock
market, the Board of Directors may choose whether the exercise price equals at least (a) the closing price of
the last day preceding the date of the offer, or (b) the average of the price per share, as listed on the stock
market, of the last thirty days, or any other relevant period, preceding the date on which the warrants are
offered.

Warrant plan Netherlands 2002

Pursuant to the Warrant Plan Netherlands 2002, a total number of 125,000 warrants have been issued to and
subscribed for by Galapagos NV. At 31 December 2005, the Group has allotted an aggregate number of
120,648 warrants pursuant to this Warrant Plan Netherlands 2002, of which 20,186 warrants are still
outstanding at 31 December 2005. The exercise period of the warrants amounts to four years, which
exercise period starts as from the date of offer. The warrants can be exercised at the latest on 1 February
2012. A vested warrant entitled the holder of such warrant to subscribe for one share of Galapagos NV.
In respect of warrants that have been granted prior to the date of listing of Galapagos NV’s shares, the
exercise price of such warrants amount to the higher of either € 4.68 or the market value of Galapagos NV’s
share Class D as determined by the Board of Directors. The Warrant Plan the Netherlands 2002 further
provides that, once Galapagos NV’s shares are listed, the exercise price of any warrants will equal, at the
discretion of the Board of Directors, either the closing price of Galapagos NV’s shares on the trading day
preceding the day on which the warrants were granted, the average share price of the preceding 30 day
period, or any other relevant period.

Warrant plan Belgium 2005

Pursuant to the Warrant Plan Belgium 2005, a total number of 500,000 warrants were issued to and
subscribed by Galapagos NV. At 31 December 2005, an aggregate number of 297,500 warrants were
allotted to directors, employees and consultants of the Group, all of which are still outstanding at 31
December 2005. The warrants have a term of eight years. The warrants can be exercised at the latest on
29 March 2015. According to the original provisions of the Warrant Plan Belgium 2005, each vested warrant
entitled the warrant holder to subscribe for one share.
The exercise price of the warrants will be decided as at least (a) the closing price of the last day preceding
the date of the offer, or (b) the average of the price per share, as listed on the stock market, of the last
thirty days, or any other relevant period, proceeding the date on which the warrants are offered.
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Belgian Plan

2003

2004
31 Jan

Exercise Price
Current share price
Estimated volatility
Expected life of the warrant
Risk free rate
Expected dividends
Dutch Plan
Exercise Price
Current share price
Estimated volatility
Expected life of the
warrant
Risk free rate
Expected dividends

4.00
4.00
29%
3.40
4.10%
None

4.00
4.00
30%
3.90
4.31%
None

7.50
6.76
31%
3.50
3.64%
None

2005
4 Jul
7.15
6.90
30%
3.50
3.75%
None

23
Nov
8.25
8.35
30%
4.00
3.75%
None

15 Dec
9.20
8.60
30%
4.00
3.75%
None

2003
4.68
4.00
31%
2.00
3.55%
None

The method of determining the current share price is set up by the Board of Directors.
The estimated volatility is calculated as the implied volatility of the biotechnology index in the four years
preceding the offer (two years for the Dutch plan).
The expected life of the warrant is calculated as the estimated duration until exercise, taking into account the
specific features of the plans.
The warrants have been accounted for in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard 2 on
Share Based Payments. IFRS 2 takes effect for all warrants offered after 7 November 2002. In 2002, no
warrants offered under any of the plans, qualify for accounting under IFRS 2. Under the Dutch plan, no
warrants have been offered in 2004. For these periods, no fair value calculation has as such been
performed.
The weighted average fair market value of the warrants granted during 2005 and 2004 was € 235,000 and €
5,000 respectively. These were recorded in debit of the share capital.
The following table provides an overview of the outstanding warrants per personnel category at 31
December 2005.
Category
Non-executive Directors
Executive Team
Other
Total Warrants outstanding at 31 December 2005

Number of warrants
56,250
553,475
373,687
983,412
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26. Related parties
Transactions between Galapagos NV, Galapagos Genomics BV and BioFocus (starting October 2005), which
are related parties, have been eliminated in consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Transactions
between the Group and its associates are disclosed below.

Trading transactions

During the year 2005 and 2004 the Group entered into the following transactions with related parties, who
are not part of the Group.

Thousands of €
Crucell BV
Tibotec NV and associates
Johnson & Johnson Group

Sales of goods
2005

2004

5
2

82
311

Purchases of goods and
services
2005
2004
265
328

Johnson & Johnson is a related party through its parent-subsidiary relationship with Tibotec NV. The sales to
Johnson & Johnson relate to sales transactions in the normal course of business.
Both Crucell BV and Tibotec NV are the founding shareholders of the Group. The purchases performed by
the Group with Crucell BV comprise:
Thousands of €
Office rent and rent charges
Laboratory rent
Lab disposables
Other
Total

2005
271
105
52
(163)
265

2004
138
53
52
85
328

At the end of 2005 and 2004 the following amounts with related parties were still outstanding in the balance
sheet:
Thousands of €

Amounts owed by related
parties
2005
2004

Crucell BV
Tibotec NV and associates
Johnson & Johnson Group

5

Amounts owed to related
parties
2005
2004
96
7

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or
received. No provisions have been made for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related
parties.
27. Remuneration of key management personnel
On 31 December 2005, the Executive Committee comprised seven members, Mr Van de Stolpe, Dr Pollet, Dr
Dixon, Mr Hoekema, Dr Newton, Mr Phillips, and Mrs Gwosdz. Their combined remuneration package
comprises:
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Thousands of € (except for the Number of warrants)
Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Number of warrants offered in the year
Total benefits excluding warrants

2005
1,271
78
361,250
1,349

2004
574
46
0
620

The Executive directors provide their services full time for the Group. Their remuneration includes all costs
for the Group, including retirement contributions made by the executive directors. The warrants offered to
the executive directors are under the same conditions as set out in Note 24. These warrants are granted
under the Belgian 2005, 2002 and 1999 plans.
The retirement benefits to the Executive Committee, excluding the executive directors, are part of the
retirement benefit scheme to which all qualified personnel are entitled. The contributions are paid as a
percentage of the gross annual salary.
No loans, quasi-loans or other guarantees have been given to members of the Executive Committee.

Transactions with non-executive directors

Non-executive directors that represent one of the Group’s shareholders receive no compensation for their
position as directors. In 2005 and 2004, € 26,000 and € 13,000 respectively were paid as expense
reimbursement for these non-executive members of the Board of Directors.
The independent members of the Board receive a Board fee of € 1,500 per Board meeting, as well as
expense reimbursement. After the IPO they receive a fixed annual amount of € 20,000. In 2005 and 2004,
€ 41,000 and € 6,000 respectively were paid as Board fees and expense reimbursement to independent
members of the Board of Directors.
In 2005, € 115,000 in consulting fees was paid to members of the Board of Directors (€ 120,000 in 2004).
In 2005, 10,000 warrants were offered to non-executive directors (38,750 in 2004).

Other contracts with related parties:

Non-compete undertaking from Crucell: Galapagos NV and Crucell agreed that Crucell shall refrain from
activities in the field of functional genomics, except if a third party who is engaged in the field of functional
genomics acquires direct or indirect control of Crucell. This non-compete obligation applies to Crucell until 31
March 2008. The non-compete obligation applies for the geographic areas of Asia, Europe and the US. No
consideration was paid for this undertaking.
License Agreement between Tibotec and Galapagos NV dated 28 May 2001: Galapagos NV, Tibotec and
Crucell entered into a license agreement dated 15 September 1999. The parties agreed to terminate this
agreement and enter into separate new license agreements. Galapagos NV entered into the license
agreement dated 28 May 2001 under which Tibotec granted a non-exclusive worldwide royalty-free license
under the Tibotec Intellectual Property relating to, inter alia, a method for the rapid screening of analyses,
means and methods for drug discovery and the phenotypic characterization of cells, and methods for
assaying high specific protease activity. The term of this agreement is the latter of (i) the term of the
Tibotec patents or (ii) 6 March 2017. The Group paid a consideration of € 454,000 for this agreement which
was capitalized.
Research and Commercial License Agreement between Crucell and Galapagos NV dated 6 June 2001: Under
this agreement Crucell granted a sole and exclusive worldwide license to Galapagos NV under the Crucell
patents and know how for, inter alia, identifying, making and using products and services in the field of
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identification and/or validation of the biological functions of human and non-human genes, and/or genes
(fragments) of proteins and/or fragments of proteins transcribed from such genes. The term of this
agreement is the latter of (i) the term of the Crucell patents or (ii) 6 March 2017. The Group paid a
consideration of € 454,000 for this agreement which was capitalized.
Services Agreement for alteration works to be performed in the laboratories of Galapagos Genomics BV by
Facility Services Crucell Holland BV entered into between Crucell and Galapagos Genomics BV dated 3
November 2004: Under this agreement Crucell agreed to make amendments to the leased property for the
benefit of Galapagos Genomics BV. The costs (estimated at € 39,750) shall be borne by Galapagos
Genomics BV. After termination of the lease Galapagos Genomics BV must reimburse € 5,000 to Crucell for
restoration efforts.
Services Agreement between Crucell an Galapagos Genomics BV dated 15 August 2002, supplemented by an
agreement dated 5 March 2004: In addition to the lease of the property occupied by Galapagos Genomics
BV, Crucell agreed that Galapagos Genomics BV may use certain facilities of Crucell described in the
agreement (including company restaurant, laboratory facilities, the library, meeting rooms and require
assistance of the technical services department) at specified rates.
Supplemental Agreement to the Ratification Agreement for the Lease of Office and Laboratory Facilities
between Crucell and Galapagos Genomics BV dated 1 November 2004 and amended 7 March 2005: This
agreement documents new conditions for the termination of the lease agreement as set out in the
Ratification Agreement. Under the Supplemental Agreement, the lease may be terminated subject to a six
month written notice, starting from 31 March 2007.
In the previous periods, independent directors received Board Meeting fees amounting to € 1,500 per Board
Meeting. For the new post-IPO contracts this has been adjusted to an annual fee of € 20,000.
As of 1 August 2005, the Chairman of the Board, Dr Parekh receives an annual consulting fee of £ 50,000 as
a compensation for giving strategic advice, including evaluations of mergers and acquisitions and compound
in-licensing opportunities.
There are no loans between Galapagos NV and its members of the Board of Directors or its Executive Team.
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28. Acquisition of BioFocus
On 17 October 2005, the Group agreed to acquire 100% of the voting shares of BioFocus plc, a listed
company based in the United Kingdom specializing in collaborative discovery.
Provisional values have been used for fair value assessment whilst the business is integrated.
The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of BioFocus plc as at the date of the acquisition
were:
Thousands of €
Property, plant & equipment
Intangible assets
Cash & cash equivalents
Trade receivables
Inventories
Unlisted investments
Trade payables
Provisions
Deferred tax
Finance leases

Book value
5,792
25,908
1,289
5,974
3,462
2,821
45,246

Fair value
6,282
4,789
1,289
5,639
4,023
987
23,009

3,814
75

4,264
75
1,445
6,125
11,909

6,132
10,021

Fair value of net assets
Goodwill arising on acquisition (Note 11)

11,100
29,481

Total consideration consists of 3,671,180 ordinary shares, to be increased with the shares issued as a
result of BioFocus option holders deciding to convert the options into BioFocus shares and accepting the
offer from Galapagos.
The fair value of the shares included in the total consideration consists of multiple items.
At 31 December 2005, the company had issued 3,474,157 shares, relating to the acquisition of BioFocus
plc. Of these shares, 3,398,891 were issued as a result of BioFocus shareholders accepting the offer
made by Galapagos. These shares were valued at a fair value of € 9.75 each, being the published price
of the shares of Galapagos NV at the rate of exchange on the date of acquisition. The remaining 75,266
shares were issued as a result of BioFocus plc option holders converting their options into BioFocus plc
shares and then accepting the offer made by Galapagos. These shares were valued at an average
intrinsic value of € 4.42.
In addition, a remaining number of BioFocus options are expected to be exercised under the BioFocus
share option scheme, resulting in an additional 34.708 of Galapagos shares to be issued. The average
intrinsic value of these shares is € 3.46.
On January 9, 2006 an additional 272,289 shares were issued.
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Thousands of €
Shares issued, at fair value
Costs associated with the acquisition
Total

36,485
4,096
40,581

Cash outflow on acquisition:
Net cash acquired with the subsidiary
Cash paid
Net cash outflow

1,289
-4,096
-2,807

From the date of the acquisition, BioFocus plc has contributed € 1,161,000 profit to the net loss of the
group. Before costs arising on integration, BioFocus plc would have contributed € 1,192,000 profit to
the group.
If the combination had taken place at the beginning of the year, the revenue from continuing operations
would have been € 17,540,000.
29. Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating
units to which the goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate present value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the balance sheet date was €29,481,000. No
impairment loss was recognized during 2005. Details of the assumptions used in testing goodwill for
impairment are given in Note 10.

Fair valuation of net assets of subsidiary on acquisition

In determining the fair values of the net assets of BioFocus at the date of acquisition, certain estimates had
to be made by management. Independent professional valuation specialists were employed to ensure that
management estimates were reasonable and would not give rise to material misstatement of fair values.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
1. General
On 29 March 2005, the Board of Directors approved the Company’s Corporate Governance Charter. This
charter is in addition to the corporate governance provisions included in the Belgian Code of Companies and
in the Company’s articles of association. The corporate governance charter aims to achieve an efficient
management and appropriate control of the Company.
The Company’s Corporate Governance Charter includes the following specific rules and charters:
Charter of the Board of Directors;
Charter of the Audit Committee;
Charter of the Nomination- and Remuneration Committee;
Charter of the Executive Committee;
Policy for transactions between the Company and its directors and executive managers;
Protocols to avoid insider trading, relating to both the Belgian and the Dutch rules.
The Board of Directors expressed its opinion that clear understandings relating to corporate governance
contribute to long-term value creation and to a workable equilibrium between the entrepreneurship on the
one hand and the control functions of the management organisms on the other hand. The Board of
Directors has set as an objective that the principles of the Belgian Corporate Governance Code (the so-called
“Lippens-Code”) be respected as scrupulously as possible. However, the Board of Directors also determined
that it is permissible not to comply with certain corporate governance principles when the specific
circumstances in which the Company operates are taken into account. In such cases, it shall apply the
principle of “comply or explain”.

2. Corporate governance disclosure requirements of the Annual Report
2.1.

Board of Directors

Galapagos’ Board of Directors consists of a maximum of nine members, including the Chairman and the CEO.
The Chairman is a non-executive director and does not hold the office of CEO. The Board of Directors
consists of at least three independent directors.
The Board of Directors had nine members at the beginning of 2005. The Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of
29 March 2005 has re-appointed these nine directors for a period of one year. The same AGM also decided
to change the Board of Directors effective from and subject to a successful IPO of the Company as follows:
(i) the mandate of four directors (Stephen Bunting, Steven Burrill, Ronald Brus and Dirk Pollet) to come to an
end, (ii) five directors (Raj Parekh, Onno van de Stolpe, Barry Ross, Laurent Ganem, Wilson Totten) to be reappointed for a period of four years as from the date of the IPO, and (iii) two new directors (Ferdinand
Verdonck, Harrold van Barlingen) to be appointed for a period of four years as from the date of the IPO.
Also effective from and subject to a successful IPO, the same AGM appointed the following three Directors as
independent Directors: Barry Ross, Wilson Totten and Ferdinand Verdonck.
On 10 May 2005, the Board of Directors established that the IPO had been successful. Consequently, as of
that date, the Board of Directors counted the following seven members: Dr Raj Parekh (Chairman), Ir Onno
van de Stolpe (CEO), Dr Laurent Ganem, Dr Harold van Barlingen, Dr Barry Ross, Dr Wilson Totten and Mr
Ferdinand Verdonck; the latter three Directors are appointed as independent Directors.
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An independent director is a director who is independent in accordance with article 524 of the Code of
Companies and in accordance with the requirements set out in the Belgian Corporate Governance Code.
The Board believes that its size is small enough for efficient decision-making and large enough for its
members to contribute experience and knowledge from different fields and for changes to the Board’s
composition to be managed without undue disruption.
Board members are elected on the basis of their knowledge and with a view to obtaining a good balance of
skills such as finance, sector knowledge, operational experience, strategic thinking, ability to assess business
models, etc.
Except for Onno van de Stolpe (CEO), all Board members are non-executive Directors.
The directors are elected by the Shareholders’ Meeting for a maximum period of four years. Each director
can at any time tender his resignation or be dismissed before the end of his mandate by decision of the
Shareholders’ Meeting, taken with normal majority. Directors can be re-elected.
The Shareholders’ Meeting decides whether the directors are remunerated for the exercise of their mandate
as directors. Nevertheless, all directors are reimbursed for the expenses reasonably incurred during the
exercise of their mandate as a director.
The Board of Directors is authorized to take all actions which are necessary or useful to fulfill the corporate
purpose of the Company, with the exception of those actions which are explicitly reserved for the
Shareholders’ Meeting by law or under the Articles of Association.
A meeting of the Board of Directors may be called by the Chairman, by two directors, or by the CEO. A
meeting is validly held if an attendance quorum of at least half of the present or represented members of the
Board of Directors is met. If a meeting is postponed for lack of quorum, a second meeting of the Board of
Directors may validly deliberate and decide on the agenda items of the first meeting if at least two directors
are present or represented at the second meeting.
Decisions of the Board of Directors are taken by normal majority. Blank and invalid votes are not included in
the calculation of the votes cast. If the votes are tied, the Chairman of the Board of Directors has a casting
vote.
In 2005, the Board of Directors held 9 regular meetings. In addition, there have been 3 Board meetings
relating to the IPO and 8 Board meetings in connection with the BioFocus acquisition. Furthermore, there
have been 5 meetings of the Offer Committee (which was a Committee consisting of at least two Board
members, authorized by the Board of Directors of 19 September 2005 to take decisions in connection with
the public offer for BioFocus plc).
The Board’s role is to pursue the long-term success of the Company by providing entrepreneurial leadership
and enabling risks to be assessed and managed. Recurrent topics on the agenda of the Board meetings
include a review of the operations from research, development and business point of view, financial review
and interactions with other companies. Sometimes ad hoc Board meetings are held to deal with specific
matters, e.g. the Board meeting of 29 March 2005 was fully dedicated to the preparation of the IPO
(including but not limited to the consideration and approval of the draft prospectus to be submitted to the
Banking, Finance and Insurance Commission, of the application of the inscription of the Company on the list
of publicly listed companies, and of the corporate governance charters) and the Board meetings of 29 August
2005 and 19 September 2005 were fully dedicated to the preparation of the public offer for BioFocus plc.
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2.2 Board committees
At its meeting of 29 March 2005, the Board of Directors approved the establishment of an Audit Committee,
a Nomination- and Remuneration Committee, and an Executive Committee and approved the charters for
these committees and appointed the members of these committees.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee consists of the following three Directors: Ferdinand Verdonck (Chairman), Barry Ross
and Raj Parekh.
All members of the Audit Committee are non-executive directors, the majority of whom are independent.
The Chairman is an independent non-executive director. All members dispose of the relevant expertise,
especially in scientific and financial matters, to fulfill their task efficiently.
The members of the Audit Committee are appointed by the Board of Directors in order to develop long-term
audit procedures relating to all Galapagos’ activities. This task consists more specifically of: follow up on
financial reporting and verification of financial data, verification and follow up of the internal control
mechanisms, evaluation and verification of the effectiveness of the risk assessment systems, and follow up
on the internal and external audit activities.
The Audit Committee’s powers and responsibilities have been included in the charter of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee will meet as often as necessary to ensure the committee’s good operation, with a
minimum of four meetings yearly convened by the Chairman. The Audit Committee reports its conclusions
and recommendations to the Board of Directors and informs the Board of Directors regularly on the exercise
of its tasks and on all matters that require immediate action or improvement.
In 2005, the Audit Committee held 3 meetings, in which it dealt with matters including audit review and
procedures.
Nomination- and Remuneration Committee
The Nomination- and Remuneration Committee consists of the following three Directors: Raj Parekh
(Chairman), Ferdinand Verdonck and Wilson Totten.
All members of the Nomination- and Remuneration Committee are non-executive Directors, the majority of
whom are independent Directors.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s role is twofold: drafting recommendations to the Board of
Directors regarding the remuneration policy of Galapagos and the remuneration of directors and members of
the Executive Committee, and selecting the appropriate candidate-directors and making recommendations to
the Board of Directors in relation to the appointment of directors and members of the Executive Committee.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s powers and responsibilities have been included in the
charter of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will
meet at least twice yearly, as well as each time a meeting is required in view of the committee’s role and
responsibilities as convened by the Chairman. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reports its
conclusions and recommendations to the Board of Directors, while aiming to ensure utmost discretion in its
reporting documents and proceedings.
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In 2005, the Nomination- and Remuneration Committee held 6 meetings, in which it dealt with matters
including appointment of senior executives, grants of warrants and bonuses, new warrant plans and
envelopes for salary increases.
Executive Committee
The Executive Committee currently consists of seven people, who not need to be a director. The executive
director and CEO, Onno van de Stolpe, is Chairman of the Executive Committee.
On 31 December 2005, the Executive Committee consisted of the following members: Ir Onno van de Stolpe,
CEO (since Galapagos’ inception in 1999); Dr Graham Dixon, Senior Vice President Drug Discovery; Dr Dirk
Pollet, Senior Vice President Licensing and Intellectual Property; Dr Andre Hoekema, Senior Vice President
Corporate Development; Dr Christopher Newton, Senior Vice President BioFocus; Mr David Phillips, Senior
Vice President Sales & Marketing; and Ms. Vicky Gwosdz, Head of Finance.
As per 1 February 2006, Mr David Smith became Chief Financial Officer on the Executive Committee and Ms.
Gwosdz took on the role of financial controller and ceased to be a member of the Executive Committee.
The tasks of the Executive Committee include the following matters: the research, identification and
development of strategic possibilities and proposals which may contribute to Galapagos’ development in
general; the drafting and development of policy guidelines to be approved by the Board of Directors;
Galapagos’ management through, among other things, the implementation of policy guidelines; the
supervision of the performance of the business in comparison with the strategic goals, plans and budgets;
and the support of the CEO with the day-to-day management of Galapagos.
The Executive Committee meets regularly, and at least once a month. The Executive Committee prepares
quarterly reports for the Board of Directors. These management reports, sent to all directors within 15 days
after the end of each quarter, give an overview of the most important events, a financial overview, an
evaluation of the status of the budget and business plan and an overview of the policy the Executive
Committee wishes to implement during the next quarter.
Besides the quarterly management reports, the Executive Committee immediately informs the Board of
Directors of matters which may influence the Board of Directors’ risk management policy (such as potential
litigation, relations with major customers, and all facts which may substantially impact the market price of
the Shares).
2.3 New directors
In 2005, two new non-executive Directors were appointed to the Board: Ferdinand Verdonck and Harrold van
Barlingen.
Mr Verdonck is currently on the board of several companies, including Banco Urquijo (Spain) and Dictaphone
Corporation (USA). His professional experience is based on his work, mainly in financial services, most
recently as the managing director of Almanij and previously with Lazard Frères and Bekaert NV. His
responsibilities entailed board participation in publicly traded and privately-held companies in many countries.
He holds a law degree from the KU Leuven and degrees in economics from KU Leuven and the University of
Chicago. Ferdinand Verdonck is an independent Director, meeting all the criteria set forth in Appendix A of
the Lippens-Code.
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Dr Van Barlingen is managing director of Thuja Capital BV and represents AlpInvest Partners on the Board.
Thuja Capital is the exclusive manager of the direct life sciences portfolio of AlpInvest Partners, one of the
largest private equity investors worldwide. Before founding Thuja Capital he headed the life science
investments at AlpInvest partners. Prior to AlpInvest he worked as a consultant at the Boston Consulting
Group. Prior to BCG, he headed the Benelux office of the Lewin Group (a Quintiles subsidiary), an
international firm specialized in the field of health economy. He holds a MSc in Medical Biology and a PhD in
the area of cardiovascular diseases, both from the University of Utrecht.
2.4 In 2005, none of the Directors that had been appointed as an independent Director have ceased to
satisfy the requirements of independence.
2.5 The Company’s Corporate Governance Charter includes a policy for transactions between the Company
and its Directors and executive managers. The Board of Directors in its 2005 annual report to the
shareholders has reported on the consultancy agreement between the Company and Parekh Enterprises Ltd
(represented by Raj Parekh), agreed at normal market terms and in compliance with article 523 of the Code
of Companies.
2.6 The Company’s Corporate Governance Charter includes Protocols to prevent abuse of insider knowledge
so as to prevent insider trading and market manipulation. One such Protocol is specifically designed to
comply with the Belgian legal framework and the other one is designed to comply with the Dutch legal
framework. At least once per year, the compliance officer sends a notice to all staff of the Company to
remind them of the basic principles of these Protocols.
2.7 Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors
According to the decision of the Annual General Meeting of 29 March 2005 and effective as of the first listing
of the Company’s shares, the independent directors receive a remuneration of € 20,000 per year. The
Chairman of the Audit Committee receives an additional amount of € 5,000 for performing this activity. The
directors who do not qualify as independent directors do not receive a remuneration for their mandate as a
director, but the expenses they incur relating to the exercise of their mandate, are reimbursed by the
Company. The aggregate amount paid in 2005 to the Company’s non-executive directors as remuneration
for their mandate as a director and reimbursement of expenses relating to the exercise of their mandate,
was of € 67,000.
The Board of Directors has elected the possibility, in deviation from the Belgian Corporate Governance Code,
to grant warrants to non-executive Directors. By doing so, the Company has additional means to attract
competent non-executive Directors and to offer them an attractive additional remuneration without this
additional remuneration being fully at the charge of the Company’s profit- and loss account. The offering of
warrants is also a common practice in the sector in which the Company operates. Not having this possibility
would imply an important disadvantage for the Company viz. competing companies who do grant warrants or
stock options to non-executive directors. The Board is of the opinion that the granting of warrants does not
have a negative influence on the function that non-executive Directors have to fulfill. In 2005, 40,000
warrants (pre-reverse share split 1:4) giving right to 10,000 shares were granted to an independent director.
2.8 The remuneration of the CEO consists of a basic part, a variable part and other components. In
deviation from the Belgian Corporate Governance Code the Board of Directors has elected not to comply with
the corporate governance recommendation to disclose all parts of the CEO’s remuneration, such as the basic
salary. The Board of Directors explains this non-compliance by referring to privacy concerns.
2.9 In 2005, the members of the Executive Committee were paid an aggregate amount of € 1,001,000 in
salaries and an aggregate amount of € 270,000 in bonuses. Other components of their remuneration include
contributions to the Company’s pension and health insurance schemes, and certain fringe benefits of non43

material value. In this context, it is to be noted that certain members of the Executive Committee joined
only in the course of 2005.
2.10 Only the CEO is a member of both the Executive Committee and the Board of Directors. The CEO
does not receive any special remuneration for his work on the Board of Directors, as this is part of his total
remuneration package in his capacity as member of the Executive Committee.
2.11 In 2005, the following grants of warrants to the CEO and other members of the Executive Committee
occurred:
Executive
Onno van de Stolpe
Graham Dixon
André Hoekema
Vicky Gwosdz
Christopher Newton
David Phillips

Offer Date
31 January
4 July
31 January
31 January
15 December
31 January
23 November
23 November

2005
2005
2005
2005
2005
2005
2005
2005

Rights to subscribe to
shares
15,000
125,000
52,500
37,500
12,500
18,750
50,000
50,000

Exercise
Price
€ 6.76
€ 6.91
€ 6.76
€ 6.76
€ 8.60
€ 6.76
€ 8.35
€ 8.35

Expiry Date
31 January 2013
4 July 2013
31 January 2013
31 January 2013
15 December 2013
31 January 2013
23 November 2013
23 November 2013

The warrants granted in January 2005 are granted under the Warrant Plan 2002 Belgium. The warrants
granted thereafter are granted under the Warrant Plan 2005.
2.12 There are no special termination arrangements with any of the members of the Executive Committee.
2.13 Provisions of the Corporate Governance Code that were not complied with during 2005 relate to the
grant of warrants to non-executive Directors (as explained in item 2.7 of this chapter) and the disclosure of
the individual remuneration package of the CEO (as explained in item 2.8 of this chapter).
***
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STOCK INFORMATION
Listings
Euronext Brussels
Euronext Amsterdam
London Stock
Exchange AiM

GLPG
GLPGA
GLPG

Development of Share Price in 2005

Financial Calendar 2006
Annual Results 2005
Annual Shareholder Meeting
Half year results 2006

3 March, 2006
4 April, 2006
4 August, 2006

Annual Results 2006
Annual Shareholder Meeting

2 March, 2007
3 April, 2007

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Galapagos NV has its registered office at Generaal De Wittelaan L11/A3, 2800 Mechelen, Belgium.

Business number
Galapagos NV is registered with the Register of Legal Entities (“Rechtspersonenregisters”)
under business number 0466.460.429. Galapagos is registered in Mechelen, Belgium.
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Legal form
Galapagos NV is a limited liability company (“naamloze vennootschap”) incorporated
under Belgian law. It has the capacity of a company that has called upon and calls upon public
savings. Galapagos NV is incorporated for an unlimited duration.

Financial year
The financial year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Group structure
Galapagos NV holds all outstanding shares of:
Galapagos Genomics BV, a company incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands, with registered
office at Archimedesweg 4, 2333 CN Leiden, The Netherlands, and
BioFocus plc, a company incorporated under the laws of the United Kingdom, with registered offices at
Chesterford Research Park, Saffron Walden, Essex, CB10 1XL, United Kingdom.

Statutory Auditor
Deloitte Bedrijfsrevisoren
Louizalaan 240
1050 Brussels, Belgium
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